
                    NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
THURSDAY, 3RD DECEMBER, 2009 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou (Vice-Chair), Adje, Aitken, Mallett, 

Newton and Winskill 
 

 
 
Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (church representative) plus 1 Vacancy, Ms M Jemide 

(Parent Governor), Mr J Ejiofor (Parent Governor), Ms S Marsh (Parent 
Governor), Ms H Kania (LINk Representative) 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. WEBCASTING    
 
 Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent 

broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the 
Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within 
the Council.  

 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering 
the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk 
at the meeting. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 



 

2 

 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will 
be dealt with at item 10 below) 
 
(Please note that under the Council’s Constitution – Part 4 Section B paragraph 
17 – it being a special meeting no other business shall be considered). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the 

authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the 
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, 
or when the interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their 
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in 
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any 
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 

paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

6. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 4)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the Child Protection Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

held on 17th September 2009. 
 

7. JOINT AREA REVIEW ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS  (PAGES 5 - 
36)  

 
 To receive the report of the Director of Children’s Services providing an overview 

of progress in refreshing the Joint Area Review (JAR) Action Plan. 
 

8. CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE - UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE PANEL  (PAGES 37 - 42)  

 
 To receive and consider the report detailing the recommendations of the 

Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee. The Panel was formed as 
a consequence of the Joint Area Review report November 2008 and represents 
the process by which back bench members can have greater involvement in the 
Council’s work in safeguarding children. 
 



 

3 

9. CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT  (PAGES 
43 - 52)  

 
 To receive the report of the Director of Children & Young People’s Service 

updating on the Safeguarding Plan (formerly the JAR Action Plan), following 
publication of the Ofsted inspection report in July 2009. 
 

10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Under the Council’s Constitution – Part 4 Section B paragraph 17 – no other 

business shall be considered. 
 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 The next meeting to consider Child Protection matters will be on Monday 8th 

March 2010. 
 

 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and 
Member Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Natalie Cole 
Principal Committee Co-Ordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2919 
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
Email: Natalie.Cole@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Friday 13 November 2009 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 
Councillors Councillors Bull (Chair) Adamou (Vice-Chair), Adje, Newton, Alexander, 

Allison, Peacock and Bull (Chair) 
 

 
Apologies Councillors Aitken, Mallett and Winskill 

 
 
Also Present: Joseph Ejiofor (Parent Governor Representative), Helena Kania (Local 

Involvement Network (LINk)), Sarah Marsh (Parent Governor 
Representative), Marcelle Jemide (Parent Governor Representative) 
and Yvonne Denny (Church Representative), Councillor Engert and 
Council Officers 
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

OSCO01. 

 
WEBCASTING 

 The meeting was recorded for live or future broadcasting on the 
Council’s website. 
 

OSCO02. 

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mallett, who was 
substituted by Councillor Peacock, and Councillors Aitken and 
Winskill, who were substituted by Councillors Allison and Alexander. 
 

OSCO03. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS 

 There was no urgent business. 
 

OSCO04. 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

OSCO05. 

 
DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS 

 There were no deputations, petitions, presentations or questions. 
 

OSCO06. 

 
ORDER OF AGENDA 

 RESOLVED  
 
That the order of the agenda be varied to consider item 7 first to 
enable Councillor Jones’ to proceed to another meeting.  The minutes 
will appear in the same order as items listed on the agenda. 
 

OSCO07. 

 
JOINT AREA REVIEW ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS 

 The Committee noted the update on the Joint Area Review (JAR) 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

Action Plan and listed completed actions introduced by Peter Lewis 
(Director of Children and Young People’s Service (C&YPS)). 
 
Councillor Reith, the Director of C&YPS and the interim Deputy 
Director (Children and Families) answered questions from the 
Committee and the Committee noted that nationally there were not 
sufficient numbers of health visitors.  The Director of C&YPS also 
commented that moving to more independent chairing of bodies such 
as the Local Safeguarding Board and Serious Case Review (SCR) 
panels meant more demand on a small number of qualified people.  
Part of the improvement work within the service had been the 
employment of three social-work consultants working with Haringey 
social-work staff.  The Council worked towards filling the professional 
gaps by the end of the financial year.  The Department had so far 
recruited at least 12 new permanent staff including new Heads of 
Service and the Assistant Director of Safeguarding. Staffing charts for 
the Children’s Services departments were tabled.  
 
The Committee asked whether further funding would be sought by the 
Council to cover short term capacity needs and were informed that on-
going negotiations were continuing with the Department for Children, 
Schools and Families (DCSF). 
 
The Committee questioned whether the target of clearing the backlog 
of cases by December 2009 was realistic.  The Director of C&YPS 
recognised the challenge and stated that the Department could meet 
the target. 
 
The Committee noted that the data provided in the assessment 
framework was a combination of statutory and local performance 
indicators. Officers recognised that the data needed to be easier to 
understand and were working with the Secretary of State’s office and 
the Government Office for London (GOL) to present the information 
better. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
i. That the progress made to date against the Joint Area Review 

(JAR) Action Plan, specifically the JAR 2008 recommendations 
and main findings, be noted. 

 
ii. That the overall summary programme update be noted. 
 
iii. That the key performance indicators, programme level risks and 

issues be noted.  
 

OSCO08. 

 
CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE - UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE 

PANEL 

 
 The Committee received the report which provided an overview of the 

work of the Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

which ensured the involvement of Members in safeguarding children 
and examined Council policy, practice and effectiveness. The Advisory 
Committee would make recommendations to Cabinet to improve the 
safeguarding of children. 
 
Councillor Emma Jones, Chair of the Advisory Committee, presented 
the report and introduced colleagues Graham Badman (Independent 
Chair of the Local Safeguarding Board), Hillary Corrick (Independent 
Member of the Policy & Practice Advisory Committee), Eleanor Brazil 
(Interim Deputy Director - Children and Families) and Mark Gurrey 
(Interim Assistant Director for Safeguarding). 
 
The Committee noted the advance questions that had been submitted 
and the written answers provided.   
 
The Committee noted that whilst there should be a shared 
responsibility between partner agencies it was the social worker who 
was ultimately responsible for a child.  Referral threshold guidance 
was being finalised and all partner agencies would receive training on 
the document. 
 
The Committee were informed of the processes in place to deal with 
referrals and suggested that a recommendation be made to ensure 
that it should be highlighted when parents failed to take their children 
for health checks, which Councillor Jones stated would be part of 
discussions at the next Advisory Committee meeting. 
 
The interim Deputy Director –Children & Families explained that part 
of the improvement plan was about integrated working across 
agencies including multi-disciplinary services.  
 
Councillor Lorna Reith informed the Committee that she had met with 
the Cabinet Member for Adults and Social Care and directors within 
children’s and adults services to discuss issues including transition 
(from children into adults) and the possibility of individual social 
workers working with both children and adults to improve links 
between the two departments. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

OSCO09. 

 
CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT 

 The Committee received the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey 
introduced by The Director of C&YPS who drew the Committee’s 
attention to a factual inaccuracy in at paragraph 2.1.3 of the report 
which suggested that there were two Serious Case Reviews (SCR) to 
be published at the end of September 2009.  This was not the case; 
there were no SCRs scheduled for publication. 
 
In response to concerns raised by the Committee Councillor Reith and 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

The Director of C&YPS explained that regular “parenting meetings” 
occurred for those children with protection plans in place as well as in 
cases of foster-parenting and adoptions.   
 
Management team meetings between Children’s Services and Urban 
Environment officers took place which included discussions on 
homelessness operations.  Priority was given to removing children at 
risk out of temporary accommodation following discussions between 
the Urban Environment, Housing and Children’s services departments. 
 
Officers would circulate a briefing note to Committee Members about 
children in care moving from one borough into another and how it was 
decided which borough would have responsibility for those children.   
 
The Committee was informed that Children’s Services managers 
actively reviewed files on a monthly basis to ensure work was covered 
and regularly talked with front-line staff. Child Protection was also part 
of targets in staff performance appraisals.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey be noted. 
 

OSCO10. 

 
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 There were no new items of urgent business. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 21:05pm 
 
 
COUNCILLOR GIDEON BULL 
 
Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
SIGNED AT MEETING…….DAY 

 

OF………………………………… 

 

CHAIR…………………………… 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

 
 

Overview & Scrutiny                   On 3rd December 2009 
 
 

 

Report Title: Safeguarding Plan for Haringey 

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children Services  
 
Signed : 
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gwynne, Programme Manager  

 

 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

1.1. This report provides the Scrutiny with an update on delivery of the 
Safeguarding Plan (formerly the JAR Action Plan), for the period up to October 
2009.  

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1.  N/A 
 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies: 

3.1. The Haringey Community Strategy 2007-2016 in particular the ‘Safer for all’ 
key outcome. In response to the JAR Action Plan we have strengthened our 
commitment to provide support and protection to the most vulnerable people in 
our community through the following priority: We will ‘Safeguard children and 
adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it 
appropriately and effectively if it does occur’ – Community Strategy Update, 
March 2009   

3.2. The Council Plan 2007-2010 priority of ‘Encouraging lifetime well-being at 
home, work, play and learning’  

3.3. The Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09 (currently being finalised for 
2009-12) in particular the ‘Stay Safe’ element which, in part, replicates the key 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 5



 

 

actions developed through the JAR Action Plan refresh.  

3.4. Haringey Strategic Plan (NHS) 2008-2013 

3.5. Safer for all, Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2008-2011  
 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. To note progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan milestones and key 
performance indicators. 

4.2. To note the arrangements in place for managing programme level risks and 
issues. 

 
 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 

5.1. This report provides Scrutiny with a progress report on the Safeguarding Plan 
for Haringey: the refreshed JAR Action Plan.   

5.2. Quarterly performance reports on the refreshed plan will continue to focus on 
achievement of programme milestones and management of performance 
indicators, providing an indication of the direction of travel as well as identify 
areas where further support is required.  

 

 
6. Summary 

6.1. The refreshed JAR Action Plan forms the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey.  
Development of the refreshed plan comprising a smaller more focused set of 
actions was completed in August 2009.  Most of the actions are scheduled for 
completion by December 2009, which will lead to a positive recognition for the 
improvements made in the January inspection, whilst setting the way for 
safeguarding services to become amongst the best by 2012. 

6.2. The Safeguarding Plan has been focused on delivering the key actions that are 
required before the end of the year in order to ensure that the basic 
foundations are in place to enable effective safeguarding of children in 
Haringey.  This incorporates key findings from the serious case reviews 
(SCRs). 

6.3. There are several challenges to achieve this outcome, which are highlighted in 
the Safeguarding Plan Milestone Report (appendices 2 and 2a) and the 
Performance Report (appendix 3).   

 

7.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

7.1. N/A 
 

Page 6



 

 

8.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

8.1.  N/A 

9.  Head of Procurement Comments  

9.1. N/A 
 

10.  Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments 

10.1. N/A 
 

11.  Consultation  

11.1. N/A 
 

12.  Service Financial Comments 

12.1. Meetings have been held between all Area for Improvement lead officers and 
the Head of Finance. Based on these meetings an update of the allocations 
necessary across the seven themes has been undertaken.  

12.2. The revised analysis reflects the fact that as additional support has been 
engaged this has been deployed across various themes. 

 

13.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

13.1. Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms 

13.2. Appendix 2: Safeguarding Plan Milestone Report, October 2009  

13.3. Appendix 2a: Safeguarding Plan Milestone Exception Report, October 2009 

13.4. Appendix 2: Performance Indicator Report, September 2009 
 

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

14.1. JAR Report (December 2008) 

14.2. Annual Performance Assessment (December 2008) 

14.3. Inspection of Progress in the Provision of Safeguarding Report (July 2009) 
 

 

Page 7



 

 

1. Background 
 
1.1.1 In developing the JAR Action Plan back in January 2009, partners across the 

borough were keen that the Plan was ambitious and represented more than just 
addressing the JAR (Dec 2008) and APA (Dec 2008) inspection reports.  The 
intention was to unite all partners in the borough to implement more fundamental 
changes in the quality of safeguarding work.  

 
1.1.2 The ambition was to achieve a ‘positive direction of travel’ by June 2009 and this 

was to be validated by the inspection.  Whilst the inspection report recognised 
progress in some areas, their overall assessment fell short of the desired 
outcome.  
 

1.1.3 In addition, May’s performance report showed that slippage had occurred in a 
number of areas and performance measures.  Ofsted’s ‘priorities for further 
improvement’ also identified a number of actions in the current plan that needed 
to be expanded or amended.  

 
1.1.4 Senior officers across the partnership embraced the inspection findings and 

agreed that it provided an opportune moment to review the plan.  The inspection 
team also endorsed the need for this at their feedback session and suggested 
that the timelines for delivering the plan be revisited.  

 
2. Next Steps 

 
2.1.1 A range of quality assurance mechanisms have been put in place to assess 

improvement in the quality of work ahead of the inspection.  External 
assessments of progress have been commissioned to validate improvements 
and identify areas where further work is required.  In addition, a review of the 
published reports from unannounced safeguarding inspections has been 
undertaken.   

 
2.1.2 The findings from these are all being used to support the gathering of suitable 

evidence to demonstrate that: 

• We are clear about our strengths and areas for improvement; 

• Recognition should be given for some of the key areas of success that 
exist within the Borough; and 

• Plans are in place to continue to improve services and working 
practices in areas where we know further improvement is required. 

 
2.1.3 Evidence gathering and the development of a robust self assessment will help 

ensure that the inspection recognises progress made to date and our ability to 
continue to improve the service.  These activities are happening throughout 
November and December in preparation for the January inspection. 

Page 8



Appendix 1 

Overview & Scrutiny 
 
Safeguarding Plan – Glossary of Terms and Acronyms 
 

 
 
AFI Area for Improvement 
APA Annual Performance Assessment 
C&YPS Children & Young People’s Service 
CAF Common Assessment Framework 
CAIT Child Abuse Investigation Team 
CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
CiC Children in Care – children in care to the local authority 
CiN Children in Need – children in receipt of a service from Children & 

Families after assessment identified a particular need 
CLU Children With Disabilities (looked after under a series of short-

term placements)  
CP Child Protection 
CPP Child Protection Plan – the agreed plan by which the statutory 

(and other) agencies will protect a child from significant harm, 
agreed at a multi-agency child protection conference 

CT Children’s Trust 
CTEMPG Children’s Trust Executive Performance Management Group 
CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan 
DCSF Department for Children, Schools & Families 
ECM Every Child Matters – government initiative with 5 themes of 

activity to focus activity in support of children and young people 
FWi Framework-I – computer system used for children & families 

casework 
GOSH Great Ormond Street Hospital in Haringey 
HCT Haringey Children’s Trust 
HSP Haringey Strategic Partnership 
JAR Joint Area Review 
LAA Local Area Agreement 
LAC Looked After Child(ren) – children in care 
LC Leaving Care – usually referring to that group of children in care,  

over the age of 16 and still in receipt of services or support 
LCT Leaving Care Team – the specialist team that take responsibility 

for (most) children in care from age 16 and see them through to 
the end of their care episode.  The team helps to find 
accommodation and either work or continued study. 

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 
MACIE Multi-Agency Child Investigation Exercise 
MPS Metropolitan Police Service 
NMUH North Middlesex University Hospital Trust 
NQSW Newly Qualified Social Worker 
Ofsted Office for Standards in Education – undertake inspections on 

children’s services including safeguarding 
PCT Primary Care Trust 
PEP Personal Education Plan – required for every looked after child in 

Page 9



Appendix 1 

education 
R&A Referral & Assessment 
SCR Serious Case Review 
SPE Single Point of Entry 
SPSG Safeguarding Plan Steering Group 
SPPP Safeguarding Policy & Practice Panel 
SW Social Worker(s) 
UNM Unaccompanied Minor(s) – children under 18 who have come to 

this country from abroad without a parent or other attached adult 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 R
e
p
o
r
t 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 
0
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

 

 

S
ta
tu
s
 K
e
y
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ir
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 
A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 
N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 /
 n
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

K
e
y
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 
p
la
y
 
a
 
fu
ll
 
ro
le
 
in
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 
T
ru
s
t,
 
L
S
C
B
 
a
n
d
 
H
S
P
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

in
to
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

c
ro
s
s
-p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

to
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 

s
a
fe
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 

k
e
y
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

Jo
in
t 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 
fo
r 
th
e
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
o
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
W
il
l 
b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

1
.0
1
 C
re
a
te
 a
 

c
u
lt
u
re
 o
f 

s
h
a
re
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 

fo
r 
a
ll
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 &
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
d
ra
ft
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
o
m
p
o
s
it
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
p
u
ll
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 
o
f 
a
ll
 
S
C
R
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

1
.0
2
 L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 B
o
a
rd
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

th
e
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C
a
s
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
s
 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

(f
o
r 
R
e
v
ie
w
s
 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
to
 
d
a
te
 
–
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 
p
o
in
ts
 
fr
o
m
 
u
n
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
) 
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

Page 11



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
v
e
n
ts
 
h
e
ld
 
to
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
S
C
R
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
3
 T
h
in
k
 t
h
e
 

U
n
th
in
k
a
b
le
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 o
n
 1
s
t 
O
c
to
b
e
r 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
e
rs
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
; 
4
th
 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

to
 G
P
s
 o
n
 O
c
t 
2
8
th
. 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

S
C
R
 
M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
a
n
d
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
r 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
ta
ff
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
S
e
t 
o
f 
s
li
d
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 

1
s
t 

O
c
to
b
e
r 

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 a
n
y
 a
g
e
n
c
y
. 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
a
n
d
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
r 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

te
a
m
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
W
e
 

P
ro
te
c
t 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
- 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 

p
o
s
te
rs
 
c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 

w
it
h
 k
e
y
 S
C
R
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
  

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

L
S
C
B
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9
 
- 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

C
o
re
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 -
 m
in
u
te
d
  

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
S
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
 

s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
n
e
w
 
L
S
C
B
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
e
p
 0
9
. 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 

T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 o
f 
s
u
b
g
ro
u
p
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
o
R
 o
f 
s
u
b
-

g
ro
u
p
s
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
- 

B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 G
ro
u
p
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
N
o
v
 0
9
 

w
h
e
n
 
n
e
w
 
A
D
 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
s
ta
rt
s
 

(G
ro
u
p
 C
h
a
ir
) 
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

1
.0
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

L
S
C
B
 (
a
ls
o
 s
e
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 2
.0
2
) 

G
ra
h
a
m
 

B
a
d
m
a
n
 

W
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

S
a
ra
h
 P
e
e
l 
 

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

F
a
m
il
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

1
.0
4
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

F
a
m
il
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 
c
y
c
le
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

JA
R
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
.0
5
 A
g
re
e
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
C
A
F
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

C
A
F
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

a
n
d
 
Q
u
a
li
ty
 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

JA
R
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

Page 12



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 

- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 
to
 
b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 
a
t 
th
e
 
IW

 
Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

g
ro
u
p
 
o
n
 
2
n
d
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 

g
ro
u
p
 
w
il
l 

b
e
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
to
 
a
g
re
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
n
e
tw
o
rk
 

fo
ru
m
s
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
  

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

P
a
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

C
A
F
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 
to
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 

p
e
o
p
le
 
a
n
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
 C
A
F
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
s
e
ts
 
o
u
t 
th
e
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 
/ 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
fu
ll
y
 
e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

T
ra
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 T
ra
in
e
rs
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 s
e
t 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
is
 t
o
 h
a
p
p
e
n
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 

fo
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
c
c
e
le
ra
te
d
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
fo
c
u
s
 
o
n
 

n
e
w
 i
n
c
o
m
in
g
 w
o
rk
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

o
f 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 
in
 
in
it
ia
l 

a
n
d
 
c
o
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
is
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 
m
in
im
u
m
 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 
a
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 m
e
t 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 n
o
w
 d
is
s
e
m
in
a
te
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
 

o
u
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
A
u
d
it
s
 
w
il
l 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
6
 E
n
s
u
re
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
p
u
t 
fo
r 
R
&
A
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

w
h
il
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 
to
 
a
g
re
e
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 

w
it
h
 

a
d
u
lt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

W
o
rk
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 
to
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

te
a
m
. 

N
o
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

C
le
a
r 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
to
 

o
p
e
ra
te
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t,
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
S
C
B
 
a
n
d
 

d
is
s
e
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
. 
W
il
l 

fo
rm

 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
7
 D
e
li
v
e
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 

a
n
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
p
a
n
e
l 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 13



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
c
le
a
r 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
fo
r 

a
ll
 

p
a
n
e
ls
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
e
rs
 
/ 

te
a
m
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
in
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
2
 
IS
W
s
 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 1
.5
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
  
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
a
ta
 

o
n
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

a
t 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 L
S
C
B
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 

N
e
w
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
fo
rm

 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
in
 
u
s
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

in
v
it
e
s
 
to
, 
a
n
d
 
ju
d
g
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 

in
p
u
t 
a
t,
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
A
b
o
v
e
 
w
il
l 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
in
p
u
t.
 
N
e
w
 
C
P
 

s
y
s
te
m
 

b
e
in
g
 

d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 

fr
o
m
 

1
2
/1
0
/0
9
 

w
il
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 i
n
v
it
e
s
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.0
8
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
t 

C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 
c
a
re
 
p
la
n
s
 
/ 

c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 m
in
u
te
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 

- 
N
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
w
il
l 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
e
v
id
e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 
n
e
x
t 
3
 m
o
n
th
s
 .
  

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
in
 
th
e
 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
a
n
 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
N
H
S
 
a
n
d
 

P
o
li
c
e
 

a
re
 

k
e
y
 

p
a
rt
 

o
f 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
. 
 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 V
is
it
o
rs
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 &
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 
N
e
e
d
 
fo
ld
e
rs
 
a
u
d
it
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

1
.0
9
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

(J
a
n
e
 E
li
a
s
) 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
 

N
H
S
 
a
n
d
 
P
o
li
c
e
 
in
p
u
t 

in
to
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

re
fl
e
c
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
N
H
S
 
a
n
d
 

P
o
li
c
e
 

a
re
 

k
e
y
 

p
a
rt
 

o
f 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
. 
 

Ja
n
e
 E
li
a
s
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

a
ll
 
T
ru
s
ts
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

1
.1
0
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 

a
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

c
a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
 

A
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 

p
la
n
s
 
0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
F
in
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 
Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 14



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

to
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

to
o
l 
s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 b
y
 G
O
S
H
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

1
5
th
 
O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

F
ir
s
t 

a
u
d
it
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
in
 
Q
2
 
u
s
in
g
 
th
e
 
d
ra
ft
 

v
e
rs
io
n
. 
F
o
rm

a
l 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
fi
n
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 
to
o
l 
to
 
b
e
 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 
3
0
th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r.
 A
u
d
it
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 
a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 
o
f 

s
ib
li
n
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

N
e
w
 

re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 
fo
rm

 
fi
n
a
li
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
G
O
S
H
 

in
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
0
9
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

s
ib
li
n
g
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
(c
o
p
y
 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
).
 

In
 u
s
e
 s
in
c
e
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 G
e
n
o
g
ra
m
 -
 t
o
 

b
e
 
fi
n
a
li
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
in
 
u
s
e
 
b
y
 
3
0
th
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
(c
o
p
y
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
).
 K
e
y
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

re
c
o
rd
 t
o
 b
e
 f
in
a
li
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
n
 u
s
e
 b
y
 

m
id
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
(c
o
p
y
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
).
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
is
io
n
s
 
to
 
m
a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

a
n
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 v
e
rs
io
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
C
o
m
p
le
te
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

U
p
d
a
te
d
 
m
a
n
u
a
l 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 
to
 

s
ta
ff
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
L
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o
n
 

2
1
s
t 
O
c
to
b
e
r.
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

1
.1
1
 R
e
v
is
e
, 

u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

la
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 

re
v
is
e
d
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

m
a
n
u
a
l 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

S
ta
ff
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
to
 
e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
a
 

ro
ll
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
u
a
l 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

o
f 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

0
1
 J
u
n
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

1
.1
2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

le
a
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
fo
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 m
o
v
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

o
r 
o
th
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
a
c
k
 

in
to
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 /
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

a
ll
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 

N
e
w
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
in
g
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
b
e
g
in
s
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
s
e
e
 
2
.0
5
 R
o
ll
-o
u
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 
 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 15



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 
d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 
u
p
d
a
te
 
w
it
h
 

s
u
m
m
a
ry
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
F
IS
D
 
w
il
l 

fo
rm

 b
a
s
is
 o
f 
th
is
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
  

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
o
f 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 b
a
s
e
; 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

a
n
d
 a
 g
a
p
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 D
V
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 L
S
C
B
 s
u
b
-

g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

1
.1
3
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ry
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
li
s
t 
o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
; 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

d
e
ta
il
e
d
 b
y
 a
ll
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 g
a
p
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
. 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
h
o
rt
 
te
rm

 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

L
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 
le
v
e
ls
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
 f
o
r 

F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 
S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
a
n
d
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 t
e
a
m
s
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
JD
s
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
-d
ra
ft
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
 
in
 
th
o
s
e
 

te
a
m
s
 
to
 
p
ro
c
e
e
d
. 
S
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 
a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 
in
 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
, 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
is
a
b
il
it
y
, 
a
n
d
 
le
a
v
in
g
 

c
a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

1
.1
4
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
h
o
rt
 

te
rm

 s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 
to
 
ta
k
e
 
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S
W
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
re
c
ru
it
e
d
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
fr
e
e
 
u
p
 
T
M
s
 
to
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 S
/V
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
o
ff
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

1
.1
5
 R
e
c
ru
it
 

a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
 g
o
o
d
 

s
ta
ff
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

S
tu
a
rt
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
g
ra
d
u
a
te
 
tr
a
in
e
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

N
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

A
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
ta
k
e
n
 
to
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
 

th
e
 g
ra
d
u
a
te
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 1
2
 a
n
d
 5
 o
n
 

th
e
 M
A
 r
o
u
te
. 
(S
P
S
G
 u
p
d
a
te
) 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 16



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 V
is
it
o
rs
, 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
N
u
rs
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
ia
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 
p
la
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
–
 
O
n
 
T
r
a
c
k
. 
2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 
2
0
0
9
-1
0
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
p
la
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
, 

2
0
1
0
-1
1
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
p
la
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
S
M
T
, 

b
u
t 

fi
n
a
l 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

a
n
d
 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
d
o
n
e
 
b
y
 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 
a
t 
th
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 
2
0
1
0
. 

T
h
is
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
fo
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
to
 
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t 
w
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
e
n
 

a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
. 

(S
P
S
G
 

u
p
d
a
te
) 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 
fi
ll
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 N
o
t 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 
h
a
s
 
m
e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 
th
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
V
is
it
o
r 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

th
a
t 

w
a
s
 

1
4
.8
4
 

in
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 
to
 

9
.4
0
 
w
h
o
le
 
ti
m
e
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
ts
 b
y
 
Ja
n
 

2
0
1
0
. 

A
 
n
e
w
 
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
 
is
 
in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 u
s
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
k
il
l-
m
ix
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

T
h
is
 w
il
l 
a
ll
o
w
 f
o
r 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
ll
 

"h
e
a
lt
h
y
 
c
h
il
d
" 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
to
 
b
e
 

re
s
u
m
e
d
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
a
b
le
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

w
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 
V
is
it
o
rs
, 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
N
u
rs
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
ia
n
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

N
e
w
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

w
o
rk
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

re
li
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

fi
ll
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 

S
e
n
io
r 

N
a
m
e
d
 
N
u
rs
e
, 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 
1
2
th
 
O
c
t,
 

D
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 N
u
rs
e
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

0
9
, 
N
a
m
e
d
 
N
u
rs
e
 
fo
r 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 
c
a
re
 

to
 s
ta
rt
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 0
9
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

1
.1
6
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

G
u
id
e
li
n
e
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
c
la
ri
fy
 

th
e
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 
a
n
d
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 m
a
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 
JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 17



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 
h
e
ld
 
to
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
’ 
a
b
il
it
y
 
to
 

d
e
li
v
e
r 
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 

- 
N
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 
to
 

g
e
t 
th
is
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 

A
ll
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
a
re
 
to
 
b
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 
(S
P
S
G
 u
p
d
a
te
) 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
ta
il
o
re
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

fo
r 

fr
o
n
t 

li
n
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
A
 
re
v
is
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
w
h
ic
h
 

w
il
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 

te
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 
in
 
k
e
y
 
a
re
a
s
 
(w
it
h
 
a
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 
fo
c
u
s
 
o
n
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry
 

s
k
il
ls
) 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
t 
a
n
 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
F
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
p
u
t 

in
to
 

p
la
c
e
 

fr
o
m
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
a
t 
P
M
G
 

o
n
 
9
th
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
ri
s
in
g
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 

to
 
c
o
m
p
a
re
 
w
it
h
 
b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
a
g
a
in
 
to
 
fi
n
d
 
o
u
t 
if
 

th
e
re
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

a
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
/i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
s
in
c
e
 
th
e
 

fi
rs
t 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 

Ju
n
e
 0
9
. 
R
e
s
u
lt
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
o
ll
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 
to
 
P
M
G
 
o
n
 
9
th
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
0
9
. 
 

D
e
b
b
ie
 

C
o
tt
e
ri
ll
  

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

s
ta
ff
 

H
u
b
s
 
o
f 
C
h
a
n
g
e
 
(T
a
v
is
to
c
k
 
/ 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
) 
p
ro
je
c
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 

- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

h
a
s
 

s
ta
rt
e
d
 

- 
th
e
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
is
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

lo
n
g
 
te
rm

 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
- 

b
u
t 

s
o
m
e
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
in
 
a
tt
it
u
d
e
 
e
tc
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e
v
id
e
n
t.
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
t 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

w
it
h
 

C
li
n
ic
a
l 

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 
G
ro
u
p
 
a
b
o
u
t 

G
P
s
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

1
.1
7
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
ta
ff
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 18



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
ro
le
 

&
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
M
o
n
th
ly
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
d
a
ta
 
is
 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
fo
r 
a
ll
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

M
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

S
c
o
re
c
a
rd
. 

D
e
ta
il
e
d
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 

a
t 

re
g
u
la
r 

G
O
S
H
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 

to
 
c
o
m
p
a
re
 
w
it
h
 
b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
A
ll
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
s
ta
ff
 
h
a
d
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 I
n
T
ra
c
k
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 t
e
a
m
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
 2
-

3
 
d
a
y
s
 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
. 
E
v
e
ry
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

V
is
it
o
r 
re
c
e
iv
e
s
 
2
-3
 
1
/2
 
d
a
y
s
 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
e
v
e
ry
 

2
-3
 m
o
n
th
s
 (
o
n
c
e
 e
v
e
ry
 4
 w
e
e
k
s
) 
in
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 

to
 

4
-6
 

w
e
e
k
ly
 

li
n
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
. 

T
h
e
 

N
a
m
e
d
 n
u
rs
e
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
fr
o
m
 
1
2
 
O
c
t.
 

G
O
S
H
 
h
a
v
e
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 
In
T
ra
c
k
 
fo
r 

1
0
0
 
s
ta
ff
 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
in
 
F
e
b
 
2
0
1
0
 
(e
a
rl
ie
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
).
 
F
ro
m
 
O
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 "
in
 h
o
u
s
e
".
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

o
f 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 o
th
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

M
P
S
 
M
o
d
e
l,
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
o
f 

P
u
b
li
c
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

U
n
it
s
. 

L
a
s
t 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 
in
 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
- 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

P
P
D
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 i
ts
 c
e
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
. 
A
s
 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
is
 
th
a
t 
P
P
D
 
m
a
te
rs
 

a
re
 a
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 i
te
m
 f
o
r 
d
a
il
y
 

re
v
ie
w
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

S
u
p
e
ri
n
te
n
d
e
n
t.
  

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

1
.1
8
 E
n
s
u
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
p
o
li
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

S
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 
s
u
rv
e
y
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 

to
 
c
o
m
p
a
re
 
w
it
h
 
b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

Page 19



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 

a
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
s
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
o
n
 
ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
S
e
ri
e
s
 
o
f 

tr
a
in
in
g
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 b
o
o
k
e
d
 /
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
  
S
y
lv
ia
 C
h
e
w
  

S
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
w
it
h
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

in
 

c
h
il
d
 

c
e
n
tr
e
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ta
ti
v
e
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

h
is
to
ry
 

re
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

u
s
in
g
 

M
A
C
IE
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
E
x
e
rc
is
e
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
  

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

1
.1
9
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

A
g
re
e
, 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra
in
 s
ta
ff
 

o
n
 a
 C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
In
c
id
e
n
t 
D
e
-b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 
w
it
h
in
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 m
u
lt
i-
d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
, 

b
e
in
g
 
le
d
 
b
y
 
D
I 
N
o
e
l 
M
c
H
u
g
h
 
fr
o
m
 

th
e
 C
A
IT
 T
e
a
m
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
c
o
re
 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 N
o
t 
o
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

w
it
h
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 
tr
a
in
in
g
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 
to
 

b
e
 
lo
a
n
e
d
 
to
 
L
S
C
B
 
u
n
ti
l 

e
n
d
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
th
is
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

a
h
e
a
d
 
o
f 
a
rr
iv
a
l 
o
f 
L
S
C
B
 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

a
n
d
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
li
n
k
a
g
e
 
w
it
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 

n
u
rs
e
. 

(S
P
S
G
 

u
p
d
a
te
) 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

1
.2
0
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

c
o
re
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

A
ll
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
ta
ff
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
o
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
S
e
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 m
il
e
s
to
n
e
 u
p
d
a
te
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

fo
r 

c
a
s
e
 

fi
le
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 

s
ta
ff
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
N
e
w
 
c
a
s
e
 

a
u
d
it
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 s
e
ts
 

o
u
t 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
g
o
o
d
 c
a
s
e
 f
il
e
s
. 
 M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
o
f 

s
a
m
p
li
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

q
u
a
li
ta
ti
v
e
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 

fi
le
s
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

1
.2
1
 A
s
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

fo
r 

q
u
a
li
ty
 

a
n
d
 
0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
A
u
d
it
s
 t
o
 b
e
 
E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 20



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 
b
y
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

K
e
n
 

A
d
a
m
s
 -
 s
e
t 
u
p
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 2
/1
1
 .
  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
fo
r 
c
a
s
e
 
fi
le
 

a
u
d
it
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

e
a
c
h
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

T
o
o
ls
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

to
 

h
e
lp
 

e
n
s
u
re
 
th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 

N
H
S
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 
m
e
e
t 

a
n
 
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
G
O
S
H
 

in
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
F
o
rm

 
a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
 u
s
e
 s
in
c
e
 

5
th
 
O
c
to
b
e
r.
 
N
M
U
H
T
 
fo
rm

 
a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
a
t 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 
G
ro
u
p
 
in
 
A
u
g
u
s
t.
 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 

fo
rm

s
 
a
n
d
 
a
u
d
it
 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 
to
 
b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 
a
t 

n
e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
o
f 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

in
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

Ju
s
ti
n
 D
a
n
ie
ls
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
a
ta
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
a
u
d
it
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 
o
f 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 I
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
C
o
re
 

L
o
g
ic
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 
li
s
t 

o
f 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
ra
w
n
 
u
p
 
a
n
d
 

w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
e
t 
w
it
h
 
C
o
re
 
L
o
g
ic
 
to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
re
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 
c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
in
 
F
W
I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

te
a
m
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 

fo
ll
o
w
e
d
 u
p
 i
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 
A
ll
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
fi
x
e
d
 
o
r 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
 0
9
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

In
te
rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 
a
u
d
it
 
th
e
 
w
o
rk
 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

1
.2
2
 E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 a
n
d
 

re
li
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 

d
a
ta
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 
fr
o
m
 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 
li
s
t 

o
f 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
ra
w
n
 
u
p
 
a
n
d
 

w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
e
t 
w
it
h
 
C
o
re
 
L
o
g
ic
 
to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
re
e
 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 
c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
in
 
F
W
I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

te
a
m
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 

fo
ll
o
w
e
d
 u
p
 i
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 
A
ll
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
fi
x
e
d
 
o
r 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
 0
9
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 21



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 
fr
o
m
 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 

to
 J
u
n
e
 0
9
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

v
ir
tu
a
ll
y
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 
b
u
t 
w
il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 

s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 t
o
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
. 
 

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

H
is
to
ri
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
d
a
ta
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
p
re
d
ic
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 
S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

W
o
rk
lo
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

1
.2
3
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 

v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

fo
re
c
a
s
ti
n
g
 

fu
tu
re
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
a
 
G
a
p
 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 
in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
m
e
s
 H
o
o
d
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 N
H
S
H
 B
o
a
rd
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

N
H
S
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 

L
S
C
B
 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

G
ro
u
p
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

to
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 f
ro
m
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
e
a
m
s
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

d
a
s
h
b
o
a
rd
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

tr
ia
ll
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

1
.2
4
 N
H
S
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
tr
u
s
ts
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
 

N
H
S
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
JA
R
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
G
ro
u
p
 
&
 
N
H
S
 

h
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 

re
-p
u
b
li
s
h
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 

to
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
a
re
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
 
a
n
d
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 

b
e
 

c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
re
d
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

1
.2
5
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
, 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
to
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
w
in
g
 
if
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

o
r 

n
o
t 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 
fo
r 

A
&
E
 
s
ta
ff
 
a
t 

W
h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 
a
n
d
 
N
M
U
H
 
a
n
d
 
fo
r 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
N
H
S
 
li
n
k
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
o
 p
la
n
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Page 22



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
C
T
, 

G
O
S
H
 
in
 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
a
n
d
 

C
A
M
H
S
 s
ta
ff
 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
re
c
o
rd
 
a
u
d
it
 
- 

ra
n
d
o
m
 

s
a
m
p
le
 

o
f 

a
u
d
it
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
o
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
M
a
rk
 

G
u
rr
e
y
 
to
 
m
o
v
e
 
to
 
in
te
ri
m
 
ro
le
 
A
D
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
o
m
 

2
/1
1
 

a
n
d
 

w
il
l 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 
b
ri
n
g
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
a
ll
 
th
e
 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 
s
tr
a
n
d
s
 
o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
  

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
ll
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 r
e
la
te
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 /
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

A
ll
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
re
la
te
d
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 /
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
A
ll
 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 
a
re
 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 
in
 
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 
fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
A
ri
s
in
g
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
 

Ju
li
e
 Q
u
in
n
  

A
ll
 
p
o
li
c
e
 
re
la
te
d
 
A
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 /
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 

- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 
re
p
o
rt
s
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
a
n
d
 

fo
rw
a
rd
e
d
 
to
 
D
A
C
 
A
la
n
 
G
ib
s
o
n
's
 

o
ff
ic
e
 
fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 

th
e
 

M
P
S
 

P
la
n
, 

a
s
 

p
e
r 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 H
M
IC
. 
T
h
is
 

w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
, 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

o
f 

M
o
n
th
ly
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
R
e
v
ie
w
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 w
it
h
 H
e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 

Jo
rg
e
  

T
e
a
m
 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 F
il
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 
M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

1
.2
6
 I
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 

L
o
c
a
l 

In
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 O
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
f 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

T
e
a
m
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

P
la
n
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
W
o
rk
 
in
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
1
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

fi
t 
fo
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 
A
 s
e
n
io
r 
le
a
d
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
w
h
o
 
w
il
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

in
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

Page 23



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 

to
 

b
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
o
li
c
ie
s
, 
p
la
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

D
e
te
rm
in
e
 h
o
w
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
JA
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

2
.0
3
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

in
te
re
s
te
d
 

in
 

b
e
in
g
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 
o
f 
th
e
 
JA
R
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
2
 

 

 
P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

P
a
rt
n
e
r 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
, 

fr
o
m
 

N
H
S
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
, 
in
to
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

2
.0
4
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
 

lo
c
a
l 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l,
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 o
f 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

 
Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

JA
R
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
5
 A
ll
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
il
l 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 

C
A
F
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

to
 b
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

R
o
ll
-o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
a
ll
 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

to
 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 
n
o
w
 
b
o
o
k
e
d
 
- 
tr
a
in
e
rs
 
to
 

b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 1
1
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
  

JA
R
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

Page 24



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
, 
a
s
 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 

in
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 
ti
m
e
 
ta
b
le
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
je
c
t 

p
la
n
 
fo
r 
C
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
re
la
te
d
 

e
x
e
m
p
la
rs
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
 

fl
o
w
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

IC
S
/C
P
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 
o
n
 
1
2
 
O
c
t,
 
a
s
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
. 
T
ra
in
in
g
 
o
n
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

F
w
i 
- 
b
e
in
g
 r
o
ll
e
d
 o
u
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

th
a
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

a
re
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
k
in
g
 
th
e
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 t
a
s
k
 e
a
s
ie
r.
  

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.0
6
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
IC
S
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o
n
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 

a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
. 

A
li
s
o
n
 

B
o
th
a
m
 

N
o
n
 c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
a
rt
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 
in
 
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 
3
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 

 
R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
IC
S
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o
n
 F
W
-I
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

D
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
-I
 

s
y
s
te
m
 (
e
.g
. 
d
a
ta
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
) 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 A
u
g
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 t
o
 b
u
il
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 u
s
in
g
 F
W
-I
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.0
7
 E
s
ta
b
li
s
h
 

IC
S
 /
 F
W
i 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
s
 

to
 s
ta
b
il
is
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 

u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
. 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

U
s
e
 o
f 
F
W
-I
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 i
n
 C
a
re
 H
e
a
lt
h
 T
e
a
m
 

 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

2
.0
8
 U
s
e
 n
e
w
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

m
o
b
il
e
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
tu
d
y
 

o
n
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

to
 

m
a
x
im
is
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 

M
o
b
il
e
 
W
o
rk
in
g
 
p
ro
je
c
t 

is
 
b
e
in
g
 

d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 

IT
 
/ 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 
F
o
rw
a
rd
 
- 
o
v
e
ra
ll
 
p
ro
je
c
t 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 
JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 25



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
b
y
 
ta
rg
e
t 
d
a
te
 
- 

b
u
t 
s
o
m
e
 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 
w
il
l 

n
o
t 
b
e
 
m
e
t.
 
P
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
in
 

p
la
c
e
, 

P
ID
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

B
o
a
rd
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
te
d
. 
 

N
e
w
 

p
la
n
 

d
e
v
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 (
w
it
h
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 I
T
, 

C
&
Y
P
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
IT
, 
F
W
I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

a
n
d
  
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
rw
a
rd
) 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
r
a
c
k
. 
S
e
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

m
il
e
s
to
n
e
. 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 
0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

Jo
in
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

N
e
e
d
s
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 a
n
d
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
0
9
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 

 

S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 -
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 

Ji
n
 L
im
  

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
(w
it
h
 

a
d
u
lt
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
) 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
 
- 

O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 

Jo
in
t 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
g
ro
u
p
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 

d
ra
ft
 1
1
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
g
re
e
d
 
0
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

2
.0
9
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 h
o
w
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 

fa
m
il
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 

Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
n
e
e
d
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 
fo
r 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 
Ia
n
 B
a
il
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 
0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 
la
u
n
c
h
 i
n
 m

id
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 (
S
P
S
G
 u
p
d
a
te
) 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 N
o
t 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
d
e
la
y
e
d
. 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 
w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
m
id
-N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

2
.1
0
 W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
, 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

L
S
C
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
o
ru
m
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

c
le
a
r 
s
e
t 
o
f 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 

jo
in
t 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 

o
f 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 

M
a
rk
 

G
u
rr
e
y
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 
o
ff
 
w
it
h
 
e
a
c
h
 

H
e
a
d
te
a
c
h
e
r 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 
fo
rm

a
ll
y
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
b
y
 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
0
. 
 

M
a
rk
 G
u
rr
e
y
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

Page 26



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

fo
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
(M
a
rk
 

G
u
rr
e
y
) 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

2
.1
1
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
re
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 f
o
r 

s
ta
ff
 o
f 
a
ll
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 

O
a
k
le
y
 

R
is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

R
a
c
h
e
l 
O
a
k
le
y
 

JA
R
- 
C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
in
g
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

P
ro
to
c
o
l 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

w
it
h
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

2
.1
3
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w
it
h
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

0
1
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
 
3
0
 A
p
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 
 

Ja
n
 D
o
u
s
t 
 

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
s
is
 

o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

N
e
tw
o
rk
 

 
o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

2
.1
5
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 

B
ra
z
il
 

W
o
rk
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
to
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 
in
 
jo
in
t 

w
o
rk
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
0
 

 
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

JA
R
 -
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

3
.0
2
 E
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
 
P
ro
c
e
s
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

L
a
m
in
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

JA
R
- 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

Page 27



 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f 

c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

0
1
 F
e
b
 2
0
0
9
 
2
8
 F
e
b
 2
0
1
0
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

L
a
m
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
 

M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 

fo
r 

fe
e
d
in
g
 

in
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 
fr
o
m
 
o
th
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
/ 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

0
1
 J
u
l 
2
0
1
0
 

3
0
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 

 

 
P
e
te
r 
L
e
w
is
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

B
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 
in
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 
b
u
il
t 
in
to
 
re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

N
e
w
 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

3
.0
3
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

“b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
” 

D
D
 C
&
F
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
0
 J
u
n
 2
0
1
1
 

 
O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 -
 O
n
 t
ra
c
k
 

E
le
a
n
o
r 
B
ra
z
il
  

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

L
e
a
d
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

P
la
n
n
e
d
 

S
ta
r
t 
D
a
te
 

D
u
e
 D
a
te
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

P
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 N
o
te
 

M
il
e
s
to
n
e
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
h
e
m
e
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

to
 
c
re
a
te
 
m
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 
te
a
m
 
o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
&
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 M
P
S
 C
A
IT
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
0
9
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

ta
k
in
g
 
p
la
c
e
 
to
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

n
e
w
 

T
e
a
m
 
b
y
 
1
s
t 
A
p
ri
l,
 
2
0
1
0
 
in
 
it
s
 

e
n
ti
re
ty
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

ta
k
in
g
 
p
la
c
e
 
to
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

n
e
w
 

T
e
a
m
 
b
y
 
1
s
t 
A
p
ri
l,
 
2
0
1
0
 
in
 
it
s
 

e
n
ti
re
ty
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

s
ta
ff
 c
o
-l
o
c
a
te
d
 

0
1
 S
e
p
 2
0
0
9
 
3
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
0
 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
0
9
 
- 
O
n
 
tr
a
c
k
. 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

ta
k
in
g
 
p
la
c
e
 
to
 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 

n
e
w
 

T
e
a
m
 
b
y
 
1
s
t 
A
p
ri
l,
 
2
0
1
0
 
in
 
it
s
 

e
n
ti
re
ty
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

3
.0
5
 M
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 

te
a
m
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 

S
ta
ff
 
tr
a
in
e
d
 
in
 
n
e
w
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

a
n
d
 

m
u
lt
i-

d
is
c
ip
li
n
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

0
1
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
0
 
3
1
 M
a
r 
2
0
1
1
 

 
 

D
a
v
e
 G
ra
n
t 
 

JA
R
- 
G
o
o
d
 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

 

Page 28



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
a

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 -
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 R
e
p
o
rt
 O
c
t 
0
9

A
c
ti
o
n

R
e
f

M
il
e
s
to
n
e

R
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te

O
th
e
r 
M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

Im
p
a
c
te
d

1
.0
1

J
o
in
t
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
s
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t

N
o
n
e

N
o
n
e

N
o
v
-0
9

N
o
n
e

1
.0
8

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
q
u
a
lit
y

o
f 
c
a
re
 p
la
n
s
 /
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 m
in
u
te
s
 

W
ill
ta
k
e
3
m
o
n
th
s
fo
r
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
to

b
e
 r
e
a
lis
e
d

E
x
te
n
d
m
ile
s
to
n
e
e
n
d
d
a
te
to
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r,

b
y
w
h
ic
h
ti
m
e
a
u
d
it
s
w
ill
h
a
v
e
ta
k
e
n
p
la
c
e

to
c
h
e
c
k
th
a
t
th
is
m
ile
s
to
n
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

N
o
n
e

D
e
c
-0
9

N
o
n
e

1
.1
5

S
o
c
ia
l
w
o
rk

g
ra
d
u
a
te

tr
a
in
e
e

s
c
h
e
m
e

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d

A
w
a
it
in
g
fi
n
a
l
d
e
c
is
io
n
re
fu
n
d
in
g
-

in
te
rv
ie
w
s
h
a
v
e
ta
k
e
n
p
la
c
e
,
1
2

c
a
n
d
id
a
te
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
. 

D
e
c
is
io
n
h
a
s
n
o
w
b
e
e
n
ta
k
e
n
o
n
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e

N
o
n
e

N
o
v
-0
9

N
o
n
e

1
.1
5

H
e
a
lt
h
w
o
rk
e
r
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
fi
lle
d
a
n
d
s
ta
ff
in

p
o
s
t

O
n
g
o
in
g

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n

h
a
s
m
e
a
n
t
th
a
t
th
e
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f

H
e
a
lt
h
V
is
it
o
r
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
th
a
t
w
a
s

1
4
.8
4
in
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
0
8
w
ill
b
e

re
d
u
c
e
d

to
9
.4
0

w
h
o
le

ti
m
e

e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
ts
 b
y
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
0
. 

A
n
e
w
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
is
in
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
to
u
s
e

fu
rt
h
e
r
s
k
ill
-m
ix
to
e
n
a
b
le
th
e
b
e
s
t
u
s
e
o
f

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
.
T
h
is
w
ill
a
llo
w
fo
r
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
th
e

fu
ll
"h
e
a
lt
h
y
c
h
ild
"
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
to

b
e

re
s
u
m
e
d
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

N
o
n
e

N
o
n
e

1
.1
5

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
p
la
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
b
y

N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
p
ro
v
id
e
d
in
it
ia
lly
d
id
n
o
t

a
llo
w
 f
o
r 
B
o
a
rd
 s
ig
n
 o
ff

W
ill
b
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
to
T
ru
s
t
B
o
a
rd
in
J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
1
0
fo
r
fi
n
a
l
s
ig
n
-o
ff
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
o
n
P
C
T

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
. 

N
o
n
e

J
a
n
-1
0

N
o
n
e

1
.1
6

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
c
e
n
tr
e
s

h
e
ld

to
e
s
ta
b
lis
h

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
’

a
b
ili
ty

to
d
e
liv
e
r

q
u
a
lit
y

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

c
e
n
tr
e
s

o
n
ly

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
fo
r
n
e
w
ly
a
p
p
o
in
te
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
.

A
re
v
is
e
d
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
is
b
e
in
g
a
d
o
p
te
d
w
h
ic
h

w
ill
a
s
s
e
s
s
te
a
m
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
in

k
e
y
a
re
a
s
(w
it
h
a
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
fo
c
u
s
o
n

s
u
p
e
rv
is
o
ry

s
k
ill
s
)
a
n
d

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
t
a
n

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
.

H
R
/
O
D
S
u
p
p
o
rt
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
&

d
e
liv
e
r
th
e

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

N
o
v
-0
9

R
e
v
ie
w
o
f
tr
a
in
in
g
n
e
e
d
e
d
to
ta
k
e

p
la
c
e
b
e
fo
re
tr
a
in
in
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

T
h
e
L
S
C
B
re
v
ie
w
o
f
tr
a
in
in
g
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
w
ill
b
e
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
to
th
e
B
o
a
rd

o
n
th
e
3
0
th
O
c
t.
0
9
T
h
e
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
lo
n
g
w
it
h

th
e
S
C
R
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
w
ill
in
fo
rm
th
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.

T
ra
in
in
g

O
ff
ic
e
r

w
it
h

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

in

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
tr
a
in
in
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
to

b
e

lo
a
n
e
d
to
L
S
C
B
u
n
ti
l
e
n
d
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
to

a
c
h
ie
v
e
th
is
a
c
ti
o
n
a
h
e
a
d
o
f
a
rr
iv
a
l
o
f

L
S
C
B
T
ra
in
in
g
O
ff
ic
e
r
a
n
d
e
n
s
u
re
lin
k
a
g
e

w
it
h
C
o
u
n
c
il
in
te
rn
a
l
tr
a
in
in
g
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 n
u
rs
e
.

A
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 i
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s

D
e
c
-0
9

1
.2
0
.2

A
ll
s
ta
ff
to

a
tt
e
n
d

tr
a
in
in
g

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

b
y

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

A
ll
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

s
ta
ff
to

a
tt
e
n
d

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 a
b
o
v
e

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e

1
.2
0

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
c
o
re

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

tr
a
in
in
g

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
O
S
R
e
p
o
rt
D
e
c
0
9
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
2
a
M
ile
s
to
n
e
E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
R
e
p
o
rt
0
.x
ls

Page 29



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
a

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 -
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 R
e
p
o
rt
 O
c
t 
0
9

A
c
ti
o
n

R
e
f

M
il
e
s
to
n
e

R
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
 M
il
e
s
to
n
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te

O
th
e
r 
M
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 

Im
p
a
c
te
d

1
.2
1

T
o
o
ls
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
to
h
e
lp
e
n
s
u
re
th
e
q
u
a
lit
y

o
f
N
H
S

re
fe
rr
a
ls

m
e
e
t
a
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le

s
ta
n
d
a
rd

N
H
S
le
a
d
h
a
s
re
q
u
e
s
te
d
g
u
id
a
n
c
e

fr
o
m
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

R
e
fe
rr
a
l
fo
rm
s
a
n
d
a
u
d
it
o
f
re
fe
rr
a
ls
to
b
e

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
a
t
n
e
x
t
m
e
e
ti
n
g
o
f
In
te
g
ra
te
d

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.

N
o
n
e

N
o
v
-0
9

N
o
n
e

1
.2
3

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 J
u
n
e
 0
9
 
C
a
lle
d
o
ff
a
ll
o
th
e
r
w
o
rk
to
a
s
s
is
t
in

re
v
ie
w

o
f

F
ir
s
t

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 C
E
.

N
o
n
e

N
o
n
e

1
6
-N
o
v
-0
9

N
o
n
e

1
.2
5

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
re
c
o
rd
a
u
d
it
-
ra
n
d
o
m
s
a
m
p
le
o
f

a
u
d
it
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n

T
o
b
e
a
lig
n
e
d
w
it
h
w
o
rk
p
la
n
n
e
d

fo
r 
K
e
n
 A
d
a
m
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

M
a
rk
G
u
rr
e
y
to
m
o
v
e
to
in
te
ri
m
ro
le
A
D

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
fr
o
m
2
/1
1
a
n
d

w
ill

p
ro
d
u
c
e

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e

s
tr
a
te
g
y

b
ri
n
g
in
g
to
g
e
th
e
r
a
ll
th
e
s
e
p
a
ra
te
s
tr
a
n
d
s
o
f

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
la
c
e

N
o
v
-0
9

2
.0
8

E
x
te
rn
a
l
s
tu
d
y
o
n
u
s
e
o
f
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
to

m
a
x
im
is
e

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s

a
n
d

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

c
o
m
p
le
te
d

L
in
k
in
g
in
w
it
h
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
IT
a
s
p
a
rt

o
f 
w
id
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

T
h
e
m
o
b
ile
w
o
rk
in
g
p
ro
je
c
t
n
o
w
lin
k
s
in

w
it
h
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
IT
a
n
d
“H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
F
o
rw
a
rd
”,

th
is
h
a
s
th
e
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
o
f
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
w
ill
b
e
n
e
fi
t
fr
o
m

th
e

le
a
rn
in
g
o
f
p
re
v
io
u
s
s
m
a
rt
w
o
rk
in
g
/
h
o
m
e

w
o
rk
in
g
/
m
o
b
ile
p
ro
je
c
ts
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il.
P
ro
je
c
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
a
n
d
b
o
a
rd
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n
a
g
re
e
d
a
n
d
d
ra
ft
p
ro
je
c
t
p
la
n
to
b
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
.
P
ro
je
c
t
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
–
fu
ll
ro
ll
o
u
t

M
a
rc
h
 1
0
. 

N
o
n
e

M
a
r-
1
0

2
.1
0

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d

L
a
u
n
c
h
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
d
e
la
y
e
d
.
M
e
e
ti
n
g

w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
m
id
-N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

N
o
n
e

N
o
n
e

N
o
v
-0
9

N
o
n
e

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
P
la
n
O
S
R
e
p
o
rt
D
e
c
0
9
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
2
a
M
ile
s
to
n
e
E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
R
e
p
o
rt
0
.x
ls

Page 30



1
 

  1
. 
R
e
fe
r
r
a
l 
&
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
5
9
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

in
it
ia
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 

w
it
h
in
 
7
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
d
a
y
s
 
o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
l 

 
2
5
.9
%
 

2
3
.7
%
 

 
1
9
.2
%
 

 
5
3
%
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
in
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 i
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
, 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 
th
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
p
o
o
r 
a
s
 
w
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
ll
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re
a
ft
e
r 

a
 
m
o
re
 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 
o
f 

fu
tu
re
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
rr
iv
e
d
 a
t 
–
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
tr
e
n
d
s
 a
re
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 

s
o
m
e
 
c
a
u
ti
o
u
s
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
b
e
li
e
v
e
 
w
e
 
re
m
a
in
 
o
n
 
tr
a
c
k
 
to
 

re
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
la
re
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
5
3
%
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 5
0
%
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
is
, 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

w
it
h
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 
re
c
ru
it
in
g
 
s
u
it
a
b
ly
 
q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 
s
ta
ff
, 
h
a
s
 

im
p
a
c
te
d
 
o
n
 
o
u
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
6
 
n
e
w
ly
 
q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
 

(N
Q
S
W
) 
h
a
v
e
 j
o
in
e
d
 t
h
e
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
w
 a
b
le
 

to
 
ta
k
e
 
o
n
 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 
w
o
rk
. 
T
w
o
 
o
th
e
r 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
N
Q
S
W
 

a
re
 
d
u
e
 
to
 
jo
in
 
th
e
 
te
a
m
 
th
is
 
m
o
n
th
, 
w
it
h
 
tw
o
 
p
la
c
e
s
 
re
m
a
in
in
g
. 
A
ll
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a
ll
 b
u
t 
2
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 s
o
 

th
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 a
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
 

B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

A
 
th
re
s
h
o
ld
s
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
h
e
lp
in
g
 
to
 
c
la
ri
fy
 
a
n
d
 

e
n
a
b
le
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
in
 
w
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
re
fe
rr
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
fo
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 
W
o
rk
 
is
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 
o
n
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 
li
n
k
s
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
C
A
F
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
to
r 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
a
re
 
g
o
in
g
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
th
e
 

C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
&
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 o
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 
P
o
li
c
e
 
o
n
 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
n
g
 
a
 
m
o
re
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
. 

C
o
m
b
in
e
d
, 

th
e
s
e
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 
w
il
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
 
o
u
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
in
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

A
u
d
it
s
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
b
y
 
a
n
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S
o
c
ia
l 
W
o
rk
e
r 
in
 
Ju
ly
 
a
n
d
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
r
d
in
g
 P
la
n
 P
e
r
fo
r
m
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
r
s
 r
e
p
o
r
t 
 

(
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
)
 

 G
e
n
e
r
a
te
d
 o
n
: 
1
5
.1
0
.0
9
 

 

 

Page 31



2
 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
s
h
o
w
 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
th
e
 
q
u
a
li
ty
 
o
f 

in
it
ia
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
w
it
h
 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

N
I 
6
0
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

c
o
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
fo
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 

th
a
t 

w
e
re
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 

w
it
h
in
 

3
5
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 

d
a
y
s
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 

 
3
1
.9
%
 

5
9
.6
%
 

 
4
2
.5
%
 

 
6
3
%
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
c
o
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 i
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
, 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
. 
W
e
 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 
th
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
p
o
o
r 
a
s
 
w
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
ll
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re
a
ft
e
r 

a
 
m
o
re
 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 
o
f 

fu
tu
re
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
w
il
l 
b
e
 
a
rr
iv
e
d
 
a
t 
–
 
w
o
rk
 
to
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
ti
m
e
li
n
e
s
s
 
is
 

a
p
p
e
a
ri
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 w
e
 b
e
li
e
v
e
 w
e
 r
e
m
a
in
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 r
e
a
c
h
 

th
e
 d
e
c
la
re
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
6
3
%
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 &
 B
e
s
t 
P
r
a
c
ti
c
e
 

A
s
 N
I 
5
9
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

N
I 
6
8
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 
to
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 
s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 
g
o
in
g
 

o
n
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

 
6
1
.4
%
 

4
5
.5
%
 

 
4
6
%
 

 
5
8
%
 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
h
e
lp
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 

c
la
ri
fy
in
g
 
th
e
 
re
le
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
W
o
rk
 
is
 
a
ls
o
 

b
e
in
g
 d
o
n
e
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

fr
o
m
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 

d
u
ty
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

L
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

, 
th
e
 

a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
n
e
 d
u
ty
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
il
l 
e
n
s
u
re
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 r
e
fe
rr
in
g
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
 

  2
. 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
r
e
n
 i
n
 C
a
r
e
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
6
2
  

S
ta
b
il
it
y
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
: 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
m
o
v
e
s
 

1
4
.6
9
%
 

1
2
.3
%
 

1
2
.8
2
%
 

 
1
2
.8
2
%
 

 
1
1
%
 

T
h
e
 
y
e
a
r 
to
 
d
a
te
 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 
is
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
1
2
 
m
o
n
th
s
 
to
 
th
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
9
. 
T
w
e
n
ty
-f
iv
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 3
 o
r 
m
o
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 

s
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
0
9
 (
4
.8
%
) 
 

N
I 
6
1
 

T
im
e
li
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 
fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 

a
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
th
a
t 

th
e
 

c
h
il
d
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
p
la
c
e
d
 
fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

8
0
%
 

5
0
%
 

5
7
.1
%
 

 
5
7
.1
%
 

 
7
5
%
 

T
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 
fo
r 
th
is
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
re
 
e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 
lo
w
, 
a
n
d
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
in
te
rp
re
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
. 
In
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
to
 
d
a
te
, 
7
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
, 
a
n
d
 4
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w
e
re
 p
la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 1
2
 

m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
. 
 

O
f 
th
e
 3
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
, 
2
 w
a
it
e
d
 1
8
 

m
o
n
th
s
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
ri
g
h
t 
fa
m
il
y
. 
F
o
r 
th
e
 
o
th
e
r 
c
h
il
d
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
w
e
re
 

p
u
tt
in
g
 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
d
o
p
to
rs
 
o
ff
, 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
n
 
a
 
m
a
tc
h
 
w
a
s
 
fi
n
a
ll
y
 
m
a
d
e
, 

th
e
 a
d
o
p
to
rs
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
e
ta
il
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 c
h
il
d
's
 h
e
a
lt
h
 b
e
fo
re
 

c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 
 

Page 32



3
 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
is
 5
0
%
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

G
re
a
t 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 
a
re
 
b
e
in
g
 
m
a
d
e
 
to
 
fi
n
d
 
fa
m
il
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 
fu
ll
 
u
s
e
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 

m
a
d
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
it
y
 -
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 p
la
c
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
re
 p
ro
fi
le
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 

a
t 
e
v
e
n
ts
 a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
a
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
O
rd
e
r 
is
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
a
u
s
e
d
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
a
s
t,
 b
u
t 
g
re
a
te
r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
 m

e
a
n
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 

a
re
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
o
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
O
rd
e
rs
 a
t 
a
 f
a
s
te
r 
ra
te
 t
h
a
n
 b
e
fo
re
. 

B
u
t 
th
e
re
 
a
ls
o
 
s
e
e
m
 
to
 
b
e
 
m
o
re
 
le
g
a
l 
c
o
m
p
le
x
it
ie
s
 
in
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
a
s
e
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
. 
 

N
I 
6
6
  

C
h
il
d
re
n
 

in
 

c
a
re
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

9
5
.6
%
 

9
8
.2
%
 

9
7
.8
%
 

 
9
7
.8
%
 

 
9
8
.0
%
 

1
1
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 i
n
 c
a
re
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 o
u
t 
o
f 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 v
a
ry
. 
F
o
r 
a
 f
a
m
il
y
 o
f 
3
, 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
it
h
 

s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
o
o
k
in
g
 
a
n
 
in
te
rp
re
te
r.
 
In
 
3
 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
th
e
 
IR
O
 
w
a
s
 
g
iv
e
n
 

la
te
 n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
h
il
d
 h
a
d
 c
o
m
e
 i
n
to
 c
a
re
, 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
. 
In
 2
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 d
a
te
s
 h
a
d
 

to
 b
e
 a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

C
lo
s
e
 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 
o
f 
th
is
 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
a
n
 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 
o
n
 

e
a
rl
y
 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
n
e
w
 
c
a
s
e
s
 
to
 
IR
O
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
o
o
d
 
li
a
is
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

N
I 
6
3
  

S
ta
b
il
it
y
 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
: 

le
n
g
th
 o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

5
6
.2
%
 

6
3
.2
%
 

6
5
.1
%
 

 
6
5
.1
%
 

 
7
0
%
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
is
 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 
s
te
a
d
il
y
 
in
 
th
e
 
ri
g
h
t 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 
o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 
ta
rg
e
t.
 
W
e
 
a
re
 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 
a
t 

6
5
%
 
w
h
ic
h
 
is
 
a
 
1
0
%
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 
o
u
r 
0
8
/0
9
 
o
u
tt
u
rn
. 
T
h
e
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 
th
is
 
c
o
h
o
rt
 
a
re
 

s
h
o
w
in
g
 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

s
ta
b
il
it
y
 
a
s
 
a
 
re
s
u
lt
 
o
f 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 T
a
v
is
to
c
k
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
. 
 

  3
. 
C
h
il
d
 P
r
o
te
c
ti
o
n
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
6
7
  

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

c
h
il
d
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 

w
e
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
s
 

1
0
0
%
 

9
5
.8
%
 

9
5
.5
%
 

 
9
5
.5
%
 

 
1
0
0
%
 

7
 
C
P
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
la
te
 
in
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
to
 
d
a
te
. 
1
 
w
a
s
 
la
te
 
in
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 A
ll
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
 C
h
il
d
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 a
 n
e
w
 s
y
s
te
m
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

d
u
e
 
d
a
te
s
 
fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
, 
a
n
d
 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
a
re
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 
w
it
h
in
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 
 

Page 33



4
 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
/

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
6
5
  

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 

b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 
th
e
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 

o
f 

C
h
il
d
 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
P
la
n
 
fo
r 
a
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
 

5
.6
%
 

3
.8
%
 

1
2
.5
%
 

 
9
.7
%
 

 
1
0
%
 

A
s
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
re
 q
u
it
e
 l
o
w
, 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 w
il
l 
v
a
ry
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
 
o
n
 
a
 
m
o
n
th
ly
 
b
a
s
is
. 
In
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
to
 
d
a
te
, 
1
1
3
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
m
a
d
e
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
p
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 
1
1
 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 
h
a
d
 
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 p
la
n
. 
 

T
h
e
 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 
fo
r 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 
w
a
s
 
1
3
%
, 
fo
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 
it
 
w
a
s
 

1
1
%
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 i
t 
w
a
s
 1
2
%
. 
 

N
I 
6
4
  

C
h
il
d
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
s
 

la
s
ti
n
g
 2
 y
e
a
rs
 o
r 
m
o
re
 

4
.7
%
 

2
5
%
 

4
0
%
 

 
1
1
.9
%
 

 
5
%
 

O
n
ly
 5
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 c
e
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
2
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 C
P
 p
la
n
 f
o
r 
2
 

y
e
a
rs
 
o
r 
m
o
re
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 
fi
g
u
re
s
 
a
re
 
lo
w
 
a
n
d
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

in
te
rp
re
te
d
 
w
it
h
 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
.T
h
e
 
y
e
a
r 
to
 
d
a
te
 
fi
g
u
re
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
6
7
 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

w
h
o
 c
e
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 p
la
n
, 
a
n
d
 8
 w
h
o
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
fo
r 
2
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
r 
m
o
re
. 
 

C
u
r
r
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

T
h
e
 
L
S
C
B
 
Q
u
a
li
ty
 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
S
u
b
 
G
ro
u
p
 
a
re
 
g
o
in
g
 
to
 
lo
o
k
 
a
t 
a
ll
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
c
h
il
d
 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
 
fo
r 
1
8
 

m
o
n
th
s
 
(t
o
 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
 
th
e
 
2
-y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
) 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
w
o
rk
 
is
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ri
ly
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 d
ri
ft
 i
n
 c
a
s
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

W
e
 w
il
l 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 f
o
r 
w
h
o
m
 c
h
il
d
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 

c
e
a
s
e
d
. 
T
h
o
s
e
 
w
h
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
c
a
re
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
a
 
p
la
n
 
w
it
h
 
a
 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 
o
f 
n
e
g
le
c
t:
 
th
is
 
is
 
n
o
t 

s
o
m
e
th
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
le
n
d
s
 i
ts
e
lf
 t
o
 q
u
ic
k
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  

B
e
s
t 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
  

O
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
is
 
5
%
. 
In
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
, 
w
e
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

4
.7
%
. 
T
h
e
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 w
a
s
 6
%
, 
fo
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
t 
w
a
s
 8
%
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
o
u
r 
s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 i
t 
w
a
s
 9
.1
%
. 
 

  4
. 
C
A
M
H
S
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

N
I 
5
1
 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
o
f 
c
h
il
d
 
a
n
d
 

a
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

(C
A
M
H
S
) 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
3
 

N
o
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

ra
n
g
e
 

N
o
 d
a
ta
 

fo
r 
th
is
 

ra
n
g
e
 

 
 

1
5
 

F
o
u
r 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 
o
f 
C
A
M
H
S
 
(l
e
a
rn
in
g
 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
, 
2
4
 
h
o
u
r 
c
o
v
e
r 
u
rg
e
n
t 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
fo
r 
1
6
 
a
n
d
 
1
7
 
y
e
a
rs
 
o
ld
, 
e
a
rl
y
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
) 
a
n
d
 
s
c
o
re
d
 
o
n
 
a
 
s
c
a
le
 
o
f 
1
-4
, 
m
a
x
im
u
m
 
o
v
e
ra
ll
 

s
c
o
re
 i
s
 1
6
. 
 

  

Page 34



5
 

 5
. 
S
ta
ff
in
g
 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 

 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 

N
I
 

c
o
d
e
 

N
I
 d
e
s
c
r
ip
ti
o
n
 

2
0
0
8
 /
 

0
9
 

A
u
g
 

2
0
0
9
 
S
e
p
0
9
 
T
r
e
n
d
 
V
a
lu
e
 
S
ta
tu
s
 
T
a
r
g
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
r
y
 

L
0
5
0
8
 

T
h
e
 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 

a
n
d
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
 

in
 

N
e
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
p
o
s
t 

u
n
fi
ll
e
d
 b
y
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 o
r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
ta
ff
 
a
t 
th
e
 
e
n
d
 

o
f 
th
e
 m

o
n
th
. 

 
2
1
.5
%
 

1
0
%
 

 
1
5
.0
8
%
 

 
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
n
 S
A
P
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
re
c
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

L
0
5
0
9
 

T
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 

te
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
n
d
 
s
e
n
io
r 
te
a
m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
o
s
ts
 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

in
 

R
e
fe
rr
a
l 

a
n
d
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 
in
 
N
e
e
d
 

a
n
d
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 
1
3
 

1
0
 

 
1
0
 

 
 

S
ta
ff
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
n
 S
A
P
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
re
c
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 f
ig
u
re
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
  

 

P
I 
S
ta
tu
s
 

 
A
le
rt
 

 
W
a
rn
in
g
 

 
O
K
 

 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 

 
D
a
ta
 O
n
ly
 

 

S
h
o
rt
 T
e
rm

 T
re
n
d
s
 

 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 

 
N
o
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

 
G
e
tt
in
g
 W

o
rs
e
 

 

  

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 
 

   Overview & Scrutiny Committee                                On 3 December 2009 
 
 

 

Report Title:  Recommendations from the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice 
Advisory Committee.  

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of the Children & Young People's Service 
 
Signed : 
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gurrey, Interim Assistant Director for Safeguarding 

 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 
 

Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision] 
 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

1.1. The purpose of this report is for the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to receive the 
recommendations of the Member’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory 
Committee (SPPAC) and to consider the response to those recommendations 
from CYPS.  

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1.  I would like to place on record my thanks to the Member Safeguarding Policy and 
Practice Advisory Committee for the very valuable work they have done in such a 
short period of time. The monitoring and challenge they have provided has been 
extremely helpful for the Service and is already leading to improvements in 
practice. 

2.2. The Committee have set out their recommendations in 4 below. Our response to 
their recommendations is set out in 7 below. As will be clear all recommendations 
are accepted and being built into practice.  

 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

3.1.  The SPPAC was set up as a response to the November 2008 JAR report which 
highlighted the need for members to become more involved in the quality and 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 37



 

 

nature of the safeguarding services provided by the Council.  
3.2. The Committee has been meeting since April 2009 and since August has been 

tracking a number of cases being dealt with by the First Response part of the 
Children and Families service. The recommendations that follow below derive 
form those case analyses.  

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. Recommendations from the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory 
Committee: 

 
1) The Committee has seen case chronologies which indicate that some children 

whose needs have required a core assessment to be carried out have then had 
their cases closed by Children’s Services without this having been discussed with 
partner agencies; in one case, a school was very concerned that a case had been 
closed, and within a few months the case had to be reopened, wasting valuable 
time. The Committee therefore recommends that: 

(a) Partner agencies who have involvement with the child are consulted 
prior to the closure of a case which has involved a core assessment having 
been carried out; 
(b) When a case involving a core assessment is closed, at least one 
agency should be explicitly given the role of monitoring developments within 
the family, in order that any deterioration in the child’s situation is highlighted; 
(c) When any case is closed, families are always supported in accessing 
universal services such as children’s centres. 
 

2) The Committee welcomes the new threshold guidance for referrals that is currently 
in development, and recommends that the Council ensures that all relevant 
Haringey staff and staff in partner agencies, particularly frontline workers, are 
provided with full training in its use as a priority. 
 

3) The Committee welcomes attempts by Children’s Services to begin to engage 
with, and hear the views of, children and young people who receive social service 
care, such as having a Child Protection Plan, but who are not Looked After 
Children, and the Committee understands that this is currently non-statutory. The 
Committee recommends that the Council carries out further work to hear the views 
of such children and young people, and that findings are acted upon as a priority. 
 

4) Having discussed children in need in a way which aims to support families in 
improving the care they can provide for their children, the Committee has become 
aware of issues surrounding communication with and transition to Adult Services 
within the Council. The Committee is aware that transition for Looked After 
Children is seen as a priority, but that there is no supported transition into 
adulthood for young people who have received services such as Child Protection 
Plans. In light of evidence that adults who abuse are more likely to have had 
abusive experiences as a child, as in the case of Baby Peter’s mother, the 
Committee therefore recommends that: 

Page 38



 

 

 
(a) Communication and multi-agency working between Children’s Services and 

Adult Services is reviewed, particularly in order that children whose carers 
have mental health problems, learning disabilities, or who suffer from 
substance misuse, are being supported by a joined-up service which 
understands the family as a whole rather than individuals within the family; 
 

(b) Young people in transition to adulthood, who have not been Looked After 
Children but who are nevertheless deemed by a service as being 
vulnerable (for example they have recently been in receipt of children’s care 
service such as a Child Protection Plan) are supported and monitored with 
this transition, for example by ensuring that universal services such as 
Connexions are being targeted at them. 
 

5) The Committee has seen initial and core assessment forms, and has discussed 
the practicalities of these with Children’s Services. It is felt that initial assessments 
are not enough focussed on the parenting capacity aspect of the assessment 
triangle, that the time allowed for initial assessments has in some cases led to 
incomplete or sub-standard work being carried out, and that core assessments do 
not offer enough flexibility or scope for full analysis by social workers but are 
instead primarily ‘tickbox’ exercises. The Committee welcomes the recently 
introduced flexibilities within the Integrated Children’s System (ICS) and 
recommends that: 
 

(a) These flexibilities are used to maximise the ability of social work staff to 
focus on analytical assessment in both initial and care assessments, and 
including the assessment of parenting capacity; 

(b) Managers are encouraged to ensure an appropriate balance between the 
quality and timeliness of assessments; 

(c) Sufficient resources are made available by the Council to enable Children’s 
Services to build on work already undertaken in this area. 

 
 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 
 

 
6. Other options considered 
 

 
7. Summary 

7.1. The panel has been served by an independent social worker, the Assistant 
Director (Interim) Safeguarding and the Head of Service for First Response. This 
has allowed for some initial response to the recommendations set out in 4.1 
above.  Officers have also been able to liaise with colleagues in health to provide 
more detail about safeguarding in their services especially in relation to GPs 
which had been a concern of the Committee.  

Page 39



 

 

 
7.2. To summarise the service response: 

• Recommendation 1. The three recommendations here are accepted and 
welcomed by the service – they constitute best practice.  Details will be passed 
to social work staff setting out these recommendations as our expectations of 
service delivery. The current auditing process in train across the service will 
allow for some checks to ascertain if these recommendations are being 
followed. Both the DCSF guidance in relation to the Common Assessment 
Framework and the recently agreed Threshold document encourages 
children’s cases to be passed ‘down’ the hierarchy of need – so an exit 
strategy for children who cease being subject to child protection plans is to 
move to children in need plans, so those who cease being dealt with under CiN 
plans can move to the CAF and access universal services.   

• Recommendation 2. The Threshold Document has now been approved by the 
Local Safeguarding Children Board (and therefore signed off by all partner 
agencies) and is being disseminated across all agencies. It will form the basis 
of future training programmes and will be used to guide decision making on 
work coming into the First Response service.  

• Recommendation 3. This is accepted and work is underway to explore how 
we can maximise our ability to hear the views of children and young people 
especially those subject to child protection plans 

• Recommendation 4. There are now regular meetings between the two 
relevant portfolio holders and their senior officers to explore areas of cross over 
and where there is a need to work more closely together. Underneath this 
group, the two relevant management teams have met and agreed a series of 
actions that are designed to provide a more seamless service for young people 
moving into adult services and to families where there are both adult based 
and children based needs. These recommendations will be helpful in moving 
this work forward 

• Recommendation 5. A substantial amount of work has already gone into 
redesigning some of the ICS templates using the relatively new Government 
flexibilities in this area. Thus far we have focussed on that part of ICS which is 
for the assessment of children at risk and who move to child protection 
conferences. That work is now complete and staff are currently being trained 
on the new processes (and are very welcoming of the changes made). The 
next phase of the project is to address the areas of referrals and initial 
assessments – and one of the driving forces behind these changes will be to 
move away from a ‘tick box’ mentality which the current formats encourage to 
something which allows social workers to demonstrate professional judgement 
and analysis. It is worth noting that the Framework for Assessment guidance 
states "A decision to gather more information constitutes an initial assessment. 
An initial assessment is defined as a brief assessment of each child referred to 
social services with a request for services to be provided. This should be 
undertaken within a maximum of 7 working days but could be very brief 
depending on the child's circumstances". Again these recommendations will 
support these changes.  

 

Page 40



 

 

8.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

8.1. Section 4 Paragraph 5 (c) suggests that there may be a need for further 
resources to ‘build on the work undertaken in this area’. The scope of such work 
and its likely costs will need to be defined and funded from a reprioritisation of 
existing Children’s Services resource.   

9.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

9.1. Comments from Legal have been incorporated into the body of the report and 
there are no other specific legal comments.   

 
 

10.  Head of Procurement Comments –[ Required for Procurement Committee] 

10.1. N/a  
 

11.  Equalities &Community Cohesion  Comments 

 

12.  Consultation  

12.1. N/a  
 
 
 

13.  Service Financial Comments 

13.1. See 8 above 
 
 

14.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

14.1. None  
 
 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

15.1. None tabled  
15.2. N/a  

 
 

 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny                    On 3rd December 2009 
 
 

 

Report Title: An Update Report on key Performance Issues in Child Protection  

 

Report of  Peter Lewis, Director of Children Services  
 
Signed : 
 

Contact Officer : Mark Gurrey,   Assistant Director,  Performance  

 
 
Wards(s) affected: ALL  
 

Report for: Non Key Decision  

1. Purpose of the report  

 
This report provides update on some key performance issues relating to the Council’s 
work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children.  
 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1     That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee consider and note the report. 
 

 
3. Reason for recommendation(s) 
 

 
4. Other options considered 
4.1. N/A 

 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

5.1. N/A 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 43



6.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

6.1. N/A 
 

7.  Head of Procurement Comments  

7.1. N/A 
 

8.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

8.1. N/A 
 

9.  Consultation  
 
N/A 

 

10.  Service Financial Comments 
 
There are no specific financial issues arising from this report.  

 

11.  Use of appendices / Tables and photographs 
 
Attached are the national KPIs for the Children and Families service  

 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 
Commentary  
 

13. NI 68 – this measures the conversion rate of referrals going onto be initial 
referrals. Outturns are increasingly closer to national and statistical 
neighbours. A recently agreed Threshold document which sets out a 
schemata to aid understanding of children’s different needs and how they 
should be responded to. It is anticipated that has this becomes more 
familiar to all the agencies that this conversion rate will continue to 
increase. 
 

14.  NI 59 – initial assessments, once authorised, should be completed in 7 
days to ensure an early and timely view is taken of children’s needs. 
Performance against this NI continues to increase towards a declared 
target of 53% by December 2009.  
 

15.  NI 60 – for more complex cases , a more comprehensive assessment is 
required. These are known as ‘core assessments’ and are require to eb 
completed in 35 days. Again the general trend is upwards towards the 

Page 44



December target of 63% For both initial and core assessments, the 
management steer in the first part of the year was towards producing 
quality work rather than focus solely on timescales. As overall standards in 
the service have improved and the quality of staff increased so there is a 
greater emphasis on both quality and timeliness.  

 
16.  Numbers subject to a child protection plan – this is what previously was 

referred to as the child protection register. There has been a recent 
increase in numbers and we are now probably at am ore realistic level for 
the borough than hitherto. 
 

17.  NI 67 – children who are subject to plans should be reviewed initially after 
three months and then every six months thereafter. There has been a 
slight decline in performance due to a number of conferences having to be 
cancelled and then reconvened which has taken them out of timescale. 
Management attention is addressing this and it is anticipated that 
performance will improve.  

 
18.       NI 65 – this measures children newly becoming subject to a plan who had 

previously had a plan some time in their earlier life. Numbers are small 
and monthly variations are not a reliable indicator of performance. 

 
19.       NI 64 – this measures children who, when their child protection plan 

ceases, had had a plan for two or more years. Again monthly variation is 
too small to be a reliable indicator of trends. However, the indicator is a 
proxy measure for children whose plans are drifting and further auditing 
will take place to understand current performance outturns. 

 
20.       Number of children in care – Members will observe the increase over the 

last 12 months. This is reflected nationally and is to a very large extent a 
reaction to Baby Peter’s case and the subsequent extra intervention all 
boroughs have been making with their most vulnerable children. It appears 
that our numbers may now be levelling out  

 
21.       NI 66 – as with children subject to plans, children in care also have to 

regularly reviewed. Performance in this area is good. 
 

22.     NI 63 and 62 – are both measures of the stability of children in care. 63 
measures those who have been in the same placement for at least 2 of the 
last 2.5 yrs. Performance is somewhat below national averages but has 
increased over the course of the year. 62 measures how many children 
have three or more moves in the course of a year – performance is good 
(and when these PIs were subject to bandings, 0-16% was considered top 
performance)  

 
23.      Adoptions/SGOs and NI 61 – again very small numbers and monthly 

trends are not helpful.  
 

24.      NI 147 - the service explored the dip in performance in September and 
rectified matters for October.  

Page 45



 
25.      NI 148 – is a subset of the Council’s NEET figures. Care leavers are one of 

the hard to reach groups. Performance is measured annually. 
 

 

Page 46



 

Appendix 1 - Children and Families National Indicators 2009-10 
 
Referrals and Assessments  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

Children Subject to a CP Plan 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

Children in Care – note that statistical neighbour averages for Children in Care are based on 

indicator averages for each authority as detailed breakdown for each indicator has not yet been published by 
Local Authority for 2008/09 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

 

 

Care Leavers 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES
	7 JOINT AREA REVIEW ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS
	Safeguarding Plan O&S Report App 1 -  Glossary of Terms
	Safeguarding Plan O&S Report Dec 09 Appendix 2 Milestones
	Safeguarding Plan OS Report Dec 09 Appendix 2a Milestone Exception Report
	Safeguarding Plan O&S Report Dec 09 Appendix 3 Performance

	8 CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE - UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE PANEL
	9 CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT
	Children and Families Graphs


